Reach Promoters Private Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Al amepnts in INR Millions, wnless othervize staied)

Equity and linbilities
Shareholders' funds
Shase capital
Reserves and surplus

Non=current linbilities
Long-term borrowimngs
Other long-term habilities
Long-term provisions

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowimgs
Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises; and
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Oiher current liabililics
Shor-term provisions

Assets

MNon-current assets

Propesty, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Long-term loans and advances
Other non-current assets

Current assefs

Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances
Short-term loans and advances
Other ourrent ossets

Summary of sigmficant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

This 15 the balance sheet referred 1o in our report of even dae

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N300013

MANISH  Cassysanesty
KUMAR  acesien

e H24.08.0)

AGRAWAL 1zz010.0530

Manish Agrawal
Partner
Membership No.: 507000

Place: Darbhanga
Date: 23 August 2024

Note

Fd

i

11
12
13
14

15
16
17
I8

Asal Asal
31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
o),71 90,71
1,333.66 1,357.93
1.42437 1,448.66
2,758.30 2.858.03
28423 376.85
6.93 346
3,049 .46 3,238.34
113.56 £5.42
2,00 2.71
23,78 19.90
192 30 1711
402 3.13
33566 28227
4.509.49 4.969.27

233533 2.520.24
1,936.88 1,798.62
128.70 133.35
77.28 137.72
447819 4,589.93
53.55 76.11
14822 68 .40
35.57 131,74
93 96 103.09
331.30 379.34
4.809.49 4,969.27
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Reach Promoters Private Limited
CIN: UT0109DL2006PTC1 50938
> A, gty ugresd
Merehant irn e t 5tl'rgh r;-:':-nan
S N
Karim Kasimali Merchant Paramjit Singh
Director rector
DIN - 05269691 DIN -01331634
Place: Mumbai Place: Gurogram

Date: 23 August 2024

Date: 23 Aupust 2024



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(ATl amounits in INR Millions, unless otherwise stared)

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 19 683.42 510.17
Other income 20 11.18 15.86
Total Income 694.60 526.03
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 21 58.37 45.14
Finance costs 22 98.19 100,75
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 215.19 188.02
Other expenses 24 347.14 296,47
Total Expenses T18.89 630.38
Loss before tax (24.29) (104.35)
Tax expense
Current tax - 5
Deferred tax 26 - -
Loss after tax !24.19! (1 IZH.35!
Earning per equity share 23
Basic (INR) (2.68) (11.50)
Diluted (INR) (2.68) (11.50)
Summary of significant accounting policies 1.1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
This is the statement of profit and loss referred te 1n our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Reach Promoters Private Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N3500013 CIN: U70109DL2006PTC150938
MANISH [ fay vy by . - Y CH—
KUMAR st Kadm e Paramjiosruani
AGRAWAL  Taiaemio Kasimali okt Singh o A
Merchant 358 05407 t Ing 184135 +05'30
Manish Agrawal Karim Kasimali Merchant Paramjit Singh
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 507000 DIN - 05269691 DIN - 01831634
Place: Darbhanga Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugram

Date: 23 Augusi 2024 Date: 23 August 202 Date: 23 August 2024



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Cash Now statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amoumts in INR Millions. gnless otherwise sfated)

A.Cash Mow from opernting activities
Net loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Deprecintion and amomisation expense
Provision for emploves benefits
Lease equalisation reserve as a legsor
Finance costs
Provazon for doubtful recervables/advances
Unclaimed balances and excess provisions written back
Provision for doubt{ul recervebles written back
Bad Delns/other receivables wntien off
Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income on income 1ax refund
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjostments for :-
Changes in trade receivables
Changes in loans and advances and other assets
Changes m trade and other payables including provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid {ner)
Net cash generated from operating activities

B. Cash from investing activities

Movement in bank deposits (net)

Inierest recerved

Purchase of property, plant and equipment { meluding capital
work in progress and creditors for capital goods)

Net cash (used in) investing activities

. Cash [ow [rom [inancing activities

Proceeds from bormowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Met cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Cash generated from operating aclivities

Cash flow (used in) investing activiiies

Cash flow generated from / (used ) fimancing sctivities
Net decrenase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the year

Cash and cazh squivalents at the end of the year {refer note 16)

Asul Ax il
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(24.29) (104.35)
21519 188.02
4138 2.28
70.41 47,01
94 19 100,75
& 00 16.61
< (0.10)
(00.04) (6.93)
- 007
(4 69) (4.54)
(150 (1.75)
363.23 237.07
20.53 (9.32)
81 87 55.40
(69 70) 175.05
305,93 458,20
20.93 (12.98)
416,86 445.22
(92 94) (6.47)
2.40 4.49
(112 63) (602.15)
(203.17) (604.13)
- 369 35
(71 59) (89.37)
(154.71) (132.00)
(226.30) 127.99
41686 44522
(205 17) (604 13)
(226.30) 127.95
(12.61) (30.92)
4122 72.14
28 61 4122
(12.61) (30.92)

Note The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the mdect method as set out m Accounting Standard - 3 on “Cash Flow

Statement -
Summary of ngnificant accountmg policies

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of thess financial statzmenia
This 15 the Cash flow statement referred (o in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registretion No.. 001076N/NI0001 3
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Director
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Place; Gurugzam
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Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

1.1

b)

Background of the Company

Reach Promoters Private Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on 14 July 2006 and is primarily
engaged in the busmess of construction, development, leasing and operations of commercial and retail
projects. The Company has two projects consisting of Office portion namely “Commercia™ and Retail portion
“Aria”. The company has two phases 1.e.. Phase I (operational) by name of Airia Mall and Phase I1 which 1s
under development).

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with the accounting standards as
specified under section 133 of the Companies Act. read with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2021 (as amended). The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical
cost convention an accrual basis in accordance with the generally accepted accounting prineiples in India.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable as per the
operating cycle of the Company which is 12 months as per guidance as set out in Schedule III to the
Compames Act, 2013.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
Millions (INR'000,000), except otherwise indicated. On account of the round off to the nearest multiples
certain amounts round off to Zero.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformuty with generally accepted accounting principles requires
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the results of operations
during the reporting periods, Although these estimates are based upon management’s knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates and revisions, if any. are recognised n the
current and future periods.

Property, plant and equipment

In accordance with Accounting Standard 10, Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable
| allocable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. The cost also mcludes direct
cost and other related incidental expenses.

Building including related equipment are capitalised when the construction is substantially complete.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount. as appropriate, only when it 15 probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably,

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction | development of property, plant and equipment. which
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the period till such assets are ready to be put to use,

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset i3 derecognised when replaced or
scrapod All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Gaing and losses on disposals are determuned by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/ (losses).



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

d)

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed periodically for impawrment based on internal /
external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrymg amount of assets exceeds iis
recoverable amount,

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are
disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress'. Capital work in progress represents expenditure incurred in respect
of capital projects under development and is carmied at cost. Cost includes land, related acquizition expenses,
construction cost, borrowing costs capitalized and other direct expenditure.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment under which
they are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on assets 1s provided on written down value method. computed on the basis of useful life
preseribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013, on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready to

put to use subject to adjustments ansing out of transitional provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition/installation till the date the assets
are sold or disposed of.

Assets individually costing less than INR 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition.

The carrving amount of an asset 1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount
of the asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the term of the contract, taken into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government or any discount’'waiver, if any.

i) Rental income
Rental income from property leased under operating lease (excluding revenue share arrangements) is
recogmised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable lease period
as estimated by the management.

Rental income under operating lease having revenue share arrangements is recognised as per the term of
the contract.

i} Mantenance and other service charges
Maintenance and service charges ansing from operating leases/tenant are recognized as and when the
services are rendered except in cases where ultimate collection 1s considered doubtful. The Company
collects zoods and service tax on behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefit
flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

iti) Interest income
Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis considering the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.

v Revenue fram promotional levy
Revenue from promotional levy which includes gift voucher are recognised and accounted for as per the
terms specified in respective agreements except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful,

v) Unbilled revenue
Contractual revenue under leaze agreement which are not billed are recorded as unbilled receivables and
is included in other current assets.



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

vi) Parking Income

Parking Income 15 accounted for on an accrual basis except in cases where ultimate collection is
considered doubtful.

f) Foreign currency transactions

i

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency. by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the

fransaction.

Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions are recorded as income or expense in the
period in which they arise,

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are
carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction: and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar
valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the
values were determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences anising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting company’s monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were inttially recorded during the year. or reported in
the previous financial statements. are recognised as income or as expense in the year in which they arise
except those arising from investments in non-integral operations.

g) Taxation

Current tax

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax resulting from timing differences between taxable income and accounting income is
accounted for at the current rate of tax or substantively enacted tax rates as at reporting date, to the extent
that the tming differences are expected to crystallize.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where realization is reasonably certain whereas in case of carried
forward losses or unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there 15 a virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that such deferred tax assets will be realized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each reporting date.

h) Emplovee benefits

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan, The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary at the
year-end using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving nse
to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

i)

i

on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gamns and losses are
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Provident fund

The Company makes contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with Employess Provident
Fund and (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1952. The plan is a defined contribution plan and contribution
paid or payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which services are rendered by the employee.

Other short-term emplovee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service.
These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:
(a) In case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their
entitlement of future compensated absences; and

(b) In case of non-accumulating compensated absences. when the absences occur.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation. because of past events, and when a reliable

estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money 1s material.

Contingent hability is disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the

Company: or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income 1s virtually
certain, related asset 1s recognized.

Leases

i) Where the Company is the lessee (i.e., rent expense where properties are taken on lease)

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the nisks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis over the lease term.

i} Where the Company is the lessor (i.e., rent income where properties given on lease)

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item are classified and accounted for as finance lease.

Lease arrangements where the risk and rewards incident to ownership of an asset substantially vest with
the lessor are recognised as operating lease, Assets subject to operating leases are included m Property.
plant and equipment. The lease income recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-lme
basis over the non-cancellable lease period as estimated by the management. Costs, including depreciation
arc recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Imtial direct costs such as legal costs,
brokerage costs etc. are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss except stamp duty cost
which has been amortized over the lease lock i period.



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

k)

1)

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 15 any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs 1s less than itz carrying amount. the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance

sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists. the recoverable
amount is reassessed. and the asset 1s reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated
historical cost and is accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings., Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of the assets. in accordance with notifies
Accounting Standard 16 *“Borrowing Costs”. A qualifying asset s one that necessarily takes substantial period
of time to get ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attnbutable to equuty
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events in accordance with
Accounting Standard 20 “Eamings per share™,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.



Heach Pramaiers Private Timiled
Sawwmmuary of significant scoouinting polickes and other explanatory information for e vear ended 31 March 2024
{41 comgumiy in INR Adiifigms, wnless osherwse pioved)

As nt Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1. Bhore Capital
Anihorised
12,000,000 equiry shares {previous veer §2.000,000 equrty shares) of INR LD each 12000 L2000
1,310,000 class B equiry shares (previous yeor 1,310,000 class B equity shares) of THR 10 =ach (ERL [3.10
1310 133.10
lzzoedl. subsoribed ad Tully poid up sham capiial
9,070,546 equity thares (prenous year 9,070,546 of INR 10 each fully paid up 90.74 80.71
BTl .71
in} Reconcilistion of numbers of equity shares outstanding o the beginaing and at the end of ihe year
Exquity Shnres A ar 3] March 2024 Ag i 31 March 2003
Munber of Amouot  Mumber of shares Amaam]
shares (b INK Mu) (o INR Mun}
it the beginning of the yras F.T0548 7l B0, 70,546 $0. 7]
Oubitendiog ot the ¢nd of the yenr !II'-‘I.'LHi 20,71 !IITI.MH L |

ib} Rights, preferences and restrictions abisching o varsous closses of shares

The Company has issued mie class of equity shares having & par valee of INK 10 per shere Edch holder af equicy shares is satitled to one voie per share T the evant of hquidamon of
the Compoany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remainung esoets of the Company, afier distribution of all preferentis] amounts. The distribution of drvidend and! or
amy repayments will be in proportion ro the aumber of equity shares held by the equity tharechalders

Ko Clatz B Equity Shares weis issusd o outstianding os on 31 March, 2024 [Nl asan 31 March, 2023)

(e} Detnily of shares held by sharcholders bobding more thun 3% shareholding in the Conpany.

Equity Sharcs
MName of the sharehalder Ax at 3 March 2004 As i 31 March 1003
Mumber of | % ol shares beld | Number of thares | % ol thares held
shnres beld in held in the
ithe, Company Company
Equity shares
Laky Shore Ingin Redmil Yentuae Fund d5 15 454 50 50 45 15456 2000
Harinder Singh Heea 2040927 1242 1939927 124]
|Blockbesr Limited 207003 10,60 907018 j (8]
{d) Detnils of shares held by Promiders
Aot 30 Mareh 2024 A al 3V Blareh 2023
Promoter Nume Mumberaf | wortoe | 15 Shange . P * Change during
o i dun‘gﬂr Mumber of shares of total shares the year
M: Harinder Siagh Hora 2940327 3142 0.0l 29.35,327 24) .
M Ashok Raj Nath 186 645 426 - 3,86 645 426 =
Mr Agjun Naih 3,060,500 .’r.H-IJI . 3.00,000 330 -
Mr. Paramjr Singh 400 £.01 - 400 00/ -
Red infracon Private Limsied N 0,00 (001 300 oL .
Devindu Buildeon Provete Limited - 0.00 (ol 500 001 .
Hlackbesr Lamated A0T018 16.00 . BOTOIR ] -
| Lalkee Bhare Indin Betnd Ventum Fund 45 35 456 0,00 - 4335 456 3000 -
Total 90,70,546 e 00 | 000 90,7544 100,00
{¢) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has buught back following aggregate number and class of shiares -
Mame of the sharehoider Clness off Equity MNumber of
vhares shares hougl
bk
| Harmder Singh Hom Class B 13,00,000
Biackbear Lipated e B 16

(i There were ng shares iemesd purspars 7o commact wethout payment bemg recenved m caah, allotted an Ry pand up by way of borus mswes andor brought back 10 the curment reporting
year and in logt five yrars immediaely prececing the current reporting Year excepl 35 discloged shave

(@) Shares reserved for lszue wnder opdions

Far d=tnli of shares reserved for igme om comerman of campulsonty converible debentures and aphanally commeshblz debentures, please refer nate 4,1 tegardmg terma af comernon

off debaniuney




Heach Pramaiers Private Timiled
Sawwmmuary of significant scoouinting polickes and other explanatory information for e vear ended 31 March 2024
(41 comaamis i INR Adillioms, wniless otherwere stoed)

s i s A
31 Murch 2024 A1 March 2023
3, Reserves and Surplus

Becarithes premiuin reserve
Balance of the beginnig of the yeor 237443 237448
Balsnce ol he end of the year 1,374 48 2,374.48
Capital redemption reservie
Balance ai the begmnung of the year 1300 {3.00
Balance al the sd of the per 13.00 13.00
Deficit lo the sistement of profit and loss
Hulenee al the begumrng of fe yeur (1,029 53 (22518
Less: Logs fur the year 24 29) (104.35)
Balance at the end of the year (1,053 82 {1,029.33)
I%}E 1.357.5%
4, Long-term borrowings
Tnsecored Loans
106,07 463 131 Muagch 2023 : 1,06,07 468) Serres A Optronally Comveriibls Debentures ("Senes A OCDYs") of face value of INE 100 sach L6075 | 660.75
{refor note & 1 (o)) : ¥
13,34 234 (3] March 2023 © | 5,34,234) Serea B Optionally Comvertible Debentures {"Seres B OCTHS") of face value oTTNR 100 goch
(refir noie 4.| (B)) 13342 13342
2152472 (31 March 2025 - 21,92.472) Senes A Compulsarily Comvertible Debentures {"Szvies A TCD's") of faoe valug of INR 104 zach
(refer nome 4. {ch) 219.25 21835
18,665,716 (31 March 2025 18,66,716) Seres B Compulaoaly Converble Debentures (*Senes B COD'S") of face value of INK 100 sach
126,67 LBE &7
frafer noe d | (d))
Swcdred Loans
Teem Loan from bank (refer nate 4.27 125777 [,129.36
Less Current mamaiiies (refernoe 7) o9 56 T4z
173830 285860

4,1 Rights, preference gad restriction atiached bo doboabures;

[mi Series A OCD'y

= Term of OCDs : 20 [twonty) wency from the date of first aliodment oF Series A CCD, 12 16 Apnl 2015 (Term). Term of OCT has been extended to 20 (twenty) (31 March, 2024) years
fram |0 ften) {31 March 2023) years wide firgl amendment io (he anended and restaied Sharedolder's agreement daied 78 March, 2024

= Intese | nteress rate 10 00, pa, compounded dnnualty. brterest shall commensse accrumg and become payeble from T Apal 2024 or 28 motually sgreed to betwesi Mr. Hammider
Em;h Eiera and Lake Shore India Bstal Venture Fund.,

= Conversion - The debermur=s are optionally converiible a1 & pooe such that the Senes A OC D holders shall get | (ane) Equory Share for every 5 0828 (fhres poot 2ero sight two eighit)
Seres A OCDs bebd by them fndo 34 20855 (51 March 2023 | 4 40 855) equity shaie of face value of INR 10 2ach | (oo=] Business Dy priog o the expiry of ferm

= Redempuon . Unalest converied of redeened in accordance with the renns béreof, sach Series A OUD ghall be redesmed by the Compoary od the 18 (firs] Business Doy after the
cxpury of the Term.

ik} Sories I8 QO
= Term of OCDs : 20 (fwenty) years from the date of first sibotment of Serpes A CCD, 10 16 Apnl 2015 (Tenm) Term of OCIY hins been extended to 20 (twentyj (31 March, 2024) yeary
From 10 (ten) 137 March 2073 yewrs wde firel smandment to tha pmended mnd restmed Bhooedelder's agreement dafed 28 Meroh, 2004

- Intepess | interesi rate 10 D074, pa., compounded annually. Urteresi shall commence socnaing and become paysole from 1 Apnl 2024 o ss marneally sgreed 0 betwesen Mr, Hannder
Singh Hora snd Laise Shore [ndin Eetsil Ventuse Fund

- Convermion - The debennires are aptianslly comveruble a5 a price nuch tha the Senes B OCD holders shall gt 1 (ass) Equay Shere for every 4,008 (four porns 2802 ane zight) Seres B
O ¥y heald by them (o 3,32 065 (3] March 2023 © 3,32,065) squity shure of face value of INR 10 each) | (ane) Buziness Dey prior to the expiny of tenm

= Rederupiion | Unles cenvened of redeemed in seeoedance with the termis bereof, sach Series B 0D shiel! be redeemed by (he Carpany an the 15 (first} Business Day sfier the
expry af the Term.

[C] Series A CCIVs
= Term of OCDhs @ 20 (twenty) yeers from the date of frst allotment of Series A CCD, ie 16 Apnl 2015 {Term) Term of CCTD has been s-cended 1o 20 (twendy) (31 March, 2024) years
from EO (tea) (31 Marck 2023 ) years vides fissl omencdtoent 0 the omended and restated Shaedolde's sgreement daded 28 March, 2024

= Interest | interest rote 10.00%, pa, compounded annually. Interest shall commence accrumg and becoms gayuble from 1 Apnl 2024 or 25 merunafly agreed to betwesn Mr Hannder
Sigh Hora and Laise Shore Indiy Hatagl Venrune Fund

= Cormvesmon - The debenimres are comverhble & a-price sush had 1he Senes & CCD holders shal) get | [one} Eguty S for every 3 0E28 (ihres poimi pimoeight two eght) Senies A
CODs hald by e Gomto 7,11 095 (31 Mlarch 3023 | 7.11.195) squity chares of tace valus of INR 10 each) | (one) Business Day paar to the sspiny of rerm.

8] Series B CCD'y
= Term of OCTs ; 20 (rwenny) veers from the dete of First aliotment of Senes A OCD, ie 16 Apal 2015 (Term) Term of CCD has bees cnsnded w 20 (owenry) (31 Magch, Z024) years

from 10 (rea) (31 March 202 years vide firgl amendment (o (he amended and restasd Sharedoldes's agreemen daed 28 March, 2004

= Intecest | interesi made 10007, pa, compounded annually, Interest shall commence gocrnng and become payeble from 1 Apail 2024 or as merually sgreed (o between Mr. Hannder
Singh Hoeva end Lake Shore India Ketml Venture Fund

« Conversinn - The debentures are comvertible = o price such that the Sevies B CCL) holders shall gei 1 {oae) Equity Share for svery 4,018 (four point zem coe eight} Sedes B CCDs
Eeld by thom (into 4 64,538 (3] March 2023 © 4,64 583) equity shames of fece valus of INE [0 soch) 1 fone) Business Dey poior o the expiry of rean



Heach Pramaiers Private Timiled
Sawwmmuary of significant scoouinting polickes and other explanatory information for e vear ended 31 March 2024
{41 comgumiy in INR Adiifigms, wnless osherwse pioved)

Sr. Na. Type of Debentures Dote of Allooment Number of Debentures Crve of Redemption/'Conversion

! Sectes A OCDYs June 04, 2019 63.99,970 Apal 15, 2035
d Sarws A DD Apcl 24, X5 22658 M Aprl 15,2035
3 Secies A DDy Apzil 16, 2015 19.41,624 Apnf 13, 2033
4 Seros B OCD September 13, 2016 T334, 234 Azl 13, 2035
3 Sorwea A CCD's Moy |2, 2005 05954 Apal 15, 2035
L] Berpes A CCDVS Apel 24, 2015 212 47R Apal 15, 2035
7 Seres A (TS Apel 16, 2015 12,14,040 Apnl 13, 2035
f Sen=s B CCDY Seplamber 13, 2016 852 004 Appil 13, 2035
4 Senes BOCDYS Tune 01, 20L& 23,504 Apnl 13, 2035
10 Series B OCD's Apeil 08, 2016 91177 April 15, 2005

4.3 Repaymont (erms snd security for the jecured outsianding long term borrowings (incloding current maturities) as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

Term loan from banks includes the following:

Thare was no mew sanction dureng (he current year, Durng the las finonesal ysae, the Counpany had tken sapetivn fod 2 addinonal INR 1, 200:00 million focliey (uscheling Onrerdrali
Facility of INR. 199000 million and Bank Guaramiee bmie of INE 200,00 million), sddmonally the Comgany has aise ket Adhoc Term Loan facilaty of IMR 5000 million whech was
repadd during the last fnancial yead  There was o changs in sanchioned BCLGS facility of INR 123 D0 million end LRD facilsty of TNEL 1, 126 40 million (ool Bank Guasamiss Limit of
MR 100 mallon) snd Werking Capital term losa fecility of INE 100 00 muillion Iam

(&) Pacility of INR 112640 million, repayable in 108 monthly installnsent starting frem 01 Janasry 2023 10 December 2031,

The atvresaid term loan (s haveg ovtsending balosce of TNE 56162 mllion {31 March 2025 TNE 100033 million} and i ssoursd by way af -
(it First and exclusrve charge by way of squinble morgage on land admeasuring & 26 scres (exchuding the Commercia bulding already consmucied slong with the proporionane
uredivided landi

(i1} Security Cover of 2.0 times

(i11) Hypothecation of sll recenables apd escrow of eligible recervables from the provect 'Alnn’ propedies provided as secunty
(v} Amount equivelent ta three months iiierest 1o be kept as term depomit with the lender.

Chlbier termms & coudithens are 88 Telluws &
(j} Leass rentsln to be used tewards Joon repayment (Inierest & Princupal)
(ki) In case of sale [ ransfer of property 0% of inflows from salefransfer of unog shall be adpested rowards payment of outsranding Labilines (niecs s & pancigal}

(i) Rate of Interest - Applioshle Kotk Mahindra Bank '6 months’' MCLR (KMCLR) plus spread of 1 0% per aanum (31 March 2023, '6 manths’ MCLR (KMCLR) plus spresd of
1 25% per anmam]

(b} FacHrty of INR 123.00 willion working capital term boan by way of gpearanteed Credil line invder ECLGS schewe, repoyable im 48 equaited monthly instaBment starting
frum: 01 Ceiober 2022 1o 30 Seplember 2036

Tha afisresaid term loam (s having outstending balamce of THR 85.21 miltign {31 March 2023 TNE 110 24 millign] and is secured by wey of -

(i) Firat and exclusive change by way of equiishie monpage on fand sdmeasaring 6 26 scres (sxchoding the Commereia bailding alresdy congtrusied along with fhe proportionate
undivided landi

{11} Hypothecaion and escrow of eligible recervables Fom fhe prodect 'Ama’

(i) Amotnt cgurvebent 10 thres monthe inkereit on oUistending Ioam 15 be Kepr nd jemm deposs wilh the fendar

{tv) Fiate of Inksrss: . Applicsble Kotsk Mahindra Bank "1 yea' MCLR (EMCLR) plus spread of 1% per sanum (31 March 202371 yea' MCLR (KMCLE) plos spread af 1% per
nwnum}

(e} Facility of INK LiMLDG millivn sz Warking Capital Term Losn, repayable in 105 monthly ingtalment starting fron 01 Janoary 2023 o June 2037

The aforesaid tarm lnan s hoving outsmnding balnace of TNR 96 25 mullion (31 Karch 2021 [NE 98 19 mullinn) and s secured by way of ©

(i} Firet: and eocchogive chasge by wey of equiiabde mongage on land admessunng 6 26 acres (eechuding the Commertss building sleady conmroried along with the proporonate
undreided landi

li1) Security Cover of 2.0 times
(in) Hypothecation end exstow of eligible receivables from the propect "Am
(v} Amours sgquivelent to theee mentha interest on outgtandmg loan 1o be kept as e depoast wath the lender

(v) Raie of Interest - Apphioable Kotk Mahindsa Bank '6 monthe' MOLE [(EMCLR) plus speead of 1.0% per annum (31 March 2023 %6 months' MCLRE (KMCLR) plus spread of
| 55% per anmum)

id) Facility of [NR 1,200,00 million, repayable in 120 monthly instaliment starting from 01 April 2023 to March 2033

Durng the fast Brancidd weas, the Company has taken sanciion for TNT. 1,200,800 million facility (including overdraft fasainy of INR 100 million and Bank Gueranizs limit of TNR
a0k B0 malhon), out of whach company has biken ditbarsement of INR 120,00 mulbion

The sforesaid term loan is having ovtstanding belosce of INR 116,69 million (31 Merh 2023 - INE 120 00 mallion) and is secured by way of

(i} Firet and exclusrve charge by way of equitable mortgage on land admeasusing 616 scres (exciudmg the Commercin building abready confructed nlong with the propostionate
undwided landi

[ii} Becurty Cover of 2.0 {imes.

(i1 Hypothecanon and essrow of eligiole recervables from the propect “Atrnn!

(iv) Amount squivelent to three months tnterest on custandmg Loan to be kept 25 term dopoast with the lender

(v) Rate of Intesest © Applicable Kok Mahindra Bank '6 months' MULR (KMCLR) plus spvead of 1% per asnum (3] Masch 2023 '6 months MCLR (KMOLR) plus spread of 1% per

ARWUN
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Sawwmmuary of significant scoouinting polickes and other explanatory information for e vear ended 31 March 2024

{41 cmowmis in INK Adillioms, wnless otherwise sioved)

£, Diher long-term Habilitics
Capital ereditors®®
Setunty deposils

== Inoludes Exienal Development Charges o be pazd m 12 equated quarmesty mstallment’ stecting from 27 September 2002 to 27 June 2025 of INR 28 15 rw each

fi, Long-ferm provisons
Pravizon for gratuty (refer note 29)

7. Short-term borTowings

Secored lpang

Cument mefurtites of long-temy bomrowmga (refer note 4)
Tngecured liane

Lonn from related party (refer note 33) *

* Loan from director is interest free and repaysbie on demand.

B, Trade paynldes

(Al Talal m.lm-mﬁnﬁ duzg of micos endzrpnses dnd small enterprases; and {refer note below)

(B} Total ousanding dues of cradiors other than micro enterprises and amal! enmerprises

.. Diaclosure nader ihie Micrs, Small and Medinm Enterprises Developiment Aot 2006 ("MSMED Aci, 20067)

Al i s an
31 March 2624 31 Morch 2023
2B15 L4078
g;a Q3 216417
184,23 JTR.BE
693 146
E!J- Jki
9 5 T 42
T oo 1408
113.56 B4
200 i |
Z1.7R 1580
1578 1161

Under tha Macrs, Small snd bMadiom Enterprizss Develogient Act, 2006, ("MSMELY) which came mio force fiom 2 Oeroloer 2006, cenain dexclosures are required fo be made relating
to hicea, Small and Medium enrerprizes. On the bans of the informaton aed reeords svailable with the management, thers aie a0 overdues 10 the Miero and Smafl enferprises as
defingd m the Micre, Small snd blediue Enterprises Development Azt 2008

Particelore

sl
31 March H34

Aynd

31 Moy 203

1) the prmeipal amoiet & e mnicrest dus teceon remaning winand ooy gepplier g2 = the end of esch accounfing year,

200

271

during #ach dcodlnting ysir,

u} e emoemt of isteres pasd by the beyrr o terms of sechion 16, elomg wash s smoentz of the prymest mads 1o the meppher beyond the appomted dey

[trat wathout adding e mmrest specdied under ths At

1t} the amoams of imrereal die anel payahle fof the percd of delay m making poyraest (arhich have been pad bt beyond the appointed day during e yeail

1] the ameuni af Fderes accrued end remaining oapaid si the ead of sich scooursing year, and

0.0

0.04

¥ e amoor ol fusther interes? ismaning due and payebile sven m he succeeding years uptil siech dete when the imeres duss s above dre actdally pajd
1o the sriall emterprise; for e purpose of dieslovanee as o deductible expendinge nder soction 25,

The above mformation regarding Micre, Seioll amd Aeatvn Enerpenet hay hoen determrmed to the extens vwok parties aorve boem idensfied on the basiy of oxformation avmtioble with

the Company. Thiy ks been relied upon by fhe @uditoey.

B2 Trade payable ageing Schedubes

As at 31 March 2i24

Dwistonding For Bllowing vesrs Trom due dote of paymen

Lss than 1

Unbilled = 1-2 vonrs 2-3 vears More Than 3 vears Tuaial
(i3 Undispured Dues- MSME . 199 Q.01 . . Lo
Tirk Unm:pumnuw-_l:lﬂu |4 50 645 053 040 | 70 13.7%
m} Dhspured duss- MEME & . L - . =
{iw) Disputed dues- Oifers . . a >
ﬂlmlll.lil! for lollowing vears Trom due dote of payvment
Ax ot 31 March 20023
y Unbilled LH;?::“ . 1-2 vears 2-3 yenrs Mure Than 3 vears Taial
(i} Undispired Dies- MSME - 234 036 .01 . i B |
fii} Undispulad Duss- I'thszl 108l 736 g1l - | 62 19.50
{n} Dhspured dugs- MEME + . - - . .

irr) Dispured doss- Oihers




Heach Promiiers Privaite Timbied
Sawwmmuary of significant scoouinting polickes and other explanatory information for e vear ended 31 March 2024
(A4 cvgumes in INR Adiifions, wnless otherwese sioved)

Aol M i

31 Mareh 2024 M March 2023

9, Oiher current linbilities
Retenfion money 214 432
S=rurity deposils 1956 955
Seatwiory Lisbilities 1637 | 246
Interest accrued but not di= on Toan 1028 [1.01
Iiterest socryed but not Sue on athers 023 07
Caprial creditors (refer nowe §) LIS 4% L1774
anoant payahle for tenmi enprovemenig® L] ] 311
Adhance recerved from customen 689 B2
Esmgloyee beredins payebie 496 197
19138 17111

* [hiy ompumi perining jo copitelisadon work dune by lergedy of Ao moll o bekell of the Comperry whieh will be ocfuyied rpbsequently from e Jeerte renialy oy reed rebates oy

per the lease agreemsnn envered berween the Company,

It Shor-term Provishons

Pravimen for gratuty (refer note 249) 098 0RO
Frovesion for sompensaied absepces 104 133
4,83 313

(Thiz space has been intemacnally left biank)



Rencl Promoters Private Limited

Suminary of significant sccounting polichs and other explanatory informeden for the vear ended 3] March 2024
(Al anienty o INR Milllens. wilegs orhenviie tated)

11, Properiy, plant and equipment

Crross carrying value

As at | April 2021

Add iy

[neposale / Ocher adjustments
Az at 31 Mar 22

MAdddions
Disposals 7 Okher adyustroents
Agat 3 Mar 2024

Accumulated Deprecintion
As at 1 April 2022
Charge for (he year
Dhisposals / Other odjustments
As at 31 March 2023

Charge for the year
Disposals [ Ovhey adjustmeni s
As at 31 Mar 2024

Nel earrying valog
As at 31 Murch 2023
A5 al 31 March 2024

None

Flant sad Furnitiure and Compoter and
Land Building Machinery DMTice cowipment et e ikavied Totul
28127 121580 364 264,39 49,96 4.8 3,206.34
- i 5% 145 408 d1] .31 054
- [1.58) {8y [ 2.0 - . (3.8
TRi1ET 2135387 391 48 e % A 1] 2407 4.59 .!;2 53,06
- 1725 LED &50 - 213 279
- [2.33} iQ.08; - {0.10) - {251)
1!1.11' EEH.'?‘T 399,649 s 38T 5,72 .!E.H
= 29,58 14568 118.29 2488 381 s L |
- 05, Sl A4 40 15.05 e 231 [g3.02
= 226 - - - = ol S
- ﬂﬁ lﬂ ]E ﬂ &‘I ’IH T!-I.E
= 132.79 43 55 3326 a1 R 217 a9
- (221} 10.02) - {0.07) - i230)
- -|'J“J.f;=ﬁ._= 111.4! EE] 11;_3..; & M_!g:
SA1-2T 1,504, 79 2280 1160 087 DAY 252024
8127 178313 167 28 330 1274 141 233533

1. Property. plant and equipment pledged as secursty (refer note 4 2)
i Refer mote 28 for dischosures of contractual commitments fior the soquitition of property, planl and egonpment

(This tpuee hug been inténhiomelly 12T blonk)



Reach Promoters Private Limited

Summary of significant aceounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in INR Milliens, unless otherwise stated)

12. Capital work-in-progress

Asat
31 March 2024

1,936.88

As at
31 March 2023

L,798.62

Capital work-in-progress includes expenditure on land. development and construction of Phase I and Phase II of the retail project 'Airia’, which is

given below,
Land cost 844.63 344,63
Buildmg hard cost (such as civil works, electrical works, fire Gighting works. etc) 39.98 11.26
Fees and charges (such as license tees, labour cess, EDC, IDC charges. Consultants etc) 870.13 839.97
Finance cost 110.81 54.58
Others 71.33 48.18
1,936.88 1,798.62
Note: Refer note 28 for disclosures of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
12.1 Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 14886 704.58 16.98 1,066.46 1.936.88
Projects lemporanly suspended - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 1-3 vears More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 715.1% 16.98 41.30 1,025.16 L.798.62

Projects temporarily suspended

-

(This space has been intentionally left blank




Keach Promiers Private Limbled

Sawwmmuary of significant scoouinting polickes and other explanatory information for e vear ended 31 March 2024

{41 cmowmis in INK Adillioms, wnless otherwise sioved)

13. [.l;nrh.-rn lvans pnd advances

Unsecured, condidered goed
Serunity deposil

Advence mx a0l 15 deducted &1 source (per of provisions)

Capitaf advances

Balances with govenunent authanties (refer note 34)

Prepad expons=s

Ungecured, congidvred douhifal
Herqice tax (wfund receivable®
Cepital advinces

Less, Prowges foe dogbiful reces: ables

s i s A

31 Murch 2024 A1 March 2023
13 54 a1

el 41.66

g Brd | .16

ori0 BO.T2

02 L1 Rt

1002 1002

1.5E 158

(13.60] 113600
128,70 13335

*he Cumpenry: ko filed applicotion for ngfimd of service tox piid amounting o By, {007 million to sorvice s mitkority on advence gollected for provition of service which were wot
provided later g to concellation of properte. The applicarion of refimd war repecied by Joimd Comanswoper ond appral before Commzssioner (Appealy) has alre gt refecied,
weeoramg.y. e Company has mode provivion again the some. Frethes, the Company has filed on sppeal to an Appellafe Tribonal. Currertly, wadting foor the henrmg notice dey

Jrom the qurharities for the said coge

14, Other non-cnrrent assets

Lease equalisation meserve 3577 PEREL
Bank: deposits with mare than 11 monihs of angenal manrivy (refer nove 14,1 beho) 3871 1831
Initerest accrued and nod due thereon
= on Bank depoasty wath mose than 12 months of angmal matanty 240 1.5

TraB 137,73

141 Deposits under Ben
= nclades dapoait smobnting o INE 017 million (31 Meech 2023 - IR 0,15 million) undeq Hen with VAT asutherities sgains registranon
= includes depotl amaurning o INE 32,56 million (31 March 2023 | MK 37,85 mullson) under len with Kotak Mahmdrs benk sgnins term loan Tacaly

15, Trade receivabiles
{mnsecnred, considered gond, unbes: otherwise stnded)
Conaidesed good 53.55 T8 11
Covsidered deowbifil 1040 1575
Leax  Provamen for doubiful recenables (1040 {L575)

53.55 Th.11
151, Trade Receivabde agelog Schedules

Ouistanding [or fallowing years from due date of payiment
Arat 31 March 2034 Un Less than & | 6 mowihs-1 12 yuar 1-3 Years Mors Than 3 Years Total
magti véar
(1} Undizpenied Trade Recerables - - a 3 s
v ; IE-:Imi 1358 2558 b)) 08s LET 5355
(i1} Undisputed Trade Recanvobles - .
Comsidered Daubtiud 152 - 0i2 033 253 580 10,40
Leay- Provision for Doubtfiel Thebi (150 - il [k Y] (2 53] i5.500 (10 4y
{ri7) Dispured Trade Beceivaile - ) . ; . . . .
Connideved good
fin) Disputed Trade Recevable - - 5 . :
Cansidersd Dopbifud
I'.'Ilmnul-hyw Tallowing yoars fram due datg of payinent
Arsi31 Murch 2001 Unbilbed s Thas §: - |4 wonile-1 1=1 vears 1-3 Yeam More Than 3 Yeara Totnl
ik VERT

{1} Undispermed Trade Becerrables - - =
Crnpdal gsud 283 3g22 185 o D 054 R15 Tl
(it} Undisputsd Trade Recavables - n i
Considernd Dotbtiu 753 aio TET i 582 Q06 1578
Lege - Prowision for Dhaubefil Debd (7.39) (% 1m ol (2.37h (- Fy (0.08) (15,75}

{12} Drispumed Trade Keceivable -
Congidered good

[vini THapuded Trade Receivablo -
Cansidered Donbthul




Heach Promiiers Privaite Timbied
Sawwmmuary of significant scoouinting polickes and other explanatory information for e vear ended 31 March 2024
(A4 cvgumes in INR Adiifions, wnless otherwese sioved)

As ol s mn
31 March 2624 31 Morch 2023
16, Conh and bunle balanees
Crugh and casli equivalenls
Cith on hand 012
Salances with houks
I ciorr=nt Bscounts 2622 J13E
I escrow seoogm: 3% 168
Bank deposis wich onginad matry |4 thin § manths 04 .06
Diher bank balances
Bank Deporte wath onginal mesunty mare than 3 menths but [es3 than 12 mopths 1159.61 2118
148,13 Gl 40
17. Shori=-term lsdns and sdvances
(unsecured, conidered good)
Atbeance 1o vendors e | o0&
Advances o amployess @36 V]
Balances wath govemment suthonnes 24 29 12168
Prepnd expennss 2B i
3557 13174
Consbdered doolsiul
Advente 1o vendarn L2 124
Less | Provesion for dovhiflal recebvables (L23) [1.24)
3457 131.74

18 Dilier enrrend sEséla

{unsecured, considered good)

Other receivables 1152 1508

Interess soerued and ivod due on bank depoxits a7 0.10

Lease squalizanon reserve TR.36 B&.73

Orehes assety 178 116
PR T 1iCh. %

FTis snoce hut besn iwrendionally lef blank)



Reuch Promoters Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounis in INR Millions. wless otherwise siated)

19. Revenue from Operations
Operating révenune
Lease rental meome

(Mher operating revenue

Income from mamtenance services
[neome from promotional jevy
Others

20, Other income

Interest income:
on bank deposits
on income tax refund
on others

Other non-operating income:
Unclaimed balances and excess provisions written back
Provision for doubtful récervables wnitlen back
Miscellaneous income

21, Employer benefits expense

Salary, wages and bonus

Contribution 1o provident fund and other funds (refer note 29.B)
Staft welfare

Less transferred 1o capital work-m-progress

22, Finance cosis
Interest an:

Term loan from banks
Delayed payment of taxes and Others
Other finance charges

Lesa' transferred to capital work-in-progreas

23. Depreciafion and amorfisation expense
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 1)

(Thiz space has been mtennonally lefi blonk)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

37825 302.40
27217 18224
1321 11.72
19.79 1381
683.41 510.17
4,69 445
1.50 1.75

- 0.09

- 0.10
0.04 6.93
4.55 2.54
11.1% 15.86
74.11 5891
1.00 |.06
188 1.19
76.99 6l.16
(18.62) (16.02)
58.37 45.14
129.27 11687
002 093
25.13 37.53
154.42 155.33
{3623} (54.58)
9819 100.75
215.19 138.02
215.19 158,02



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant sccounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts m INE Miifions, imless ciherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
A1 March 2024 31 March 2023
24, (her expenses
Rates and taxes 748 4.78
Legal and professional charges 25.95 1641
Trovelling expenses 6.65 545
[nsurance 8.70 B.76
Liouse keeping services 2622 24 16
Repair and mamtenmnce 2347 1664
Brokerage and commission cxpenses 268 235
Muarketng expenses 53.57 48.606
Printing and stationary expenses 0.65 040
Recruitment and training expenses 0.78 0.25
Electnicity, waier and generaior expenses 114.33 8433
Membership and subscription - 0.03
Securtty expenses 22.14 20.15
Facility management expenses 4266 40.88
Communjcation expenses 3.33 230
Provision for doubtful receivables/advances 6.00 1661
Auditors remuneration (excluding goods and service (ax)
Stetutory audi 1.08 105
Tax aodit 0.32 .30
Certification and otheér services 0.26 0.37
Out-of pocket expenses 026 0.20
Miscellaneous expenses 0.55 219
347.14 296.47
25. Earning per share
Earnings attributable to equity shareholders
Laoss for the year for equity share holders (24.29) (104.35)
Werghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Basic) 00.70,546 90,70,545
Weighted average number ol shares for dilution 49 48,702 49,458,702
Weighted average number of equity shares outsianding during the yvear (Dilutive) 1,40,19,248 1,40,19,248
Nomingl Value of equity share { i [NR) 10 10
Basic Earning (loss) per share (in INR) (2.68) (11.50)
Diluted Earning (loss) per share* (in INR) (2.68) (11.50)

*Potential equity shaves are anii-dilutive in nature, kence they have not been considered for calculanng weighted average number af equaty
shares wsed to compute difuted earmngs per share

Asat As al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
26. Deferred taxes (net)
Deferred tax liahilities arising on acconnt of :
Written down value of property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets 6,58 &4
Lease equalisation reserve 2888 46.60
89.46 105.04
Deferred tax asseis arising on account of :
Unabsorbed depreciation 7360 9183
(1o the extent of net deferred tax lisbilities)
Prowision on doubtful receivables 11.04 11.40
Impact of expenditure charged 1o the statement of profit and loss but allowed 2.76 1.81
for tax purposes on payment basis including grawnty and leave encashment
59.40 105.04

Deferred iax liabilities / assets recognized - -

* As per Accounting Standard 22, "dccounting for texes on income", the Company would kave deferred tax asset balance as ar 31 March 2024,
Hewever, the Compary has recogmized the deferred tax assets to the extent of Deferred Tax Liabilities and balance Deferred Tax Assews has not
been given effect on a pruden: basis,
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Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in INR Millions, snless atherwise stared)

Contingent liabilities

{2) The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act. 2013 dated 31 December 2013 (which was made effective from 01 Aprl 2014) revised the
thresholds for coverage of employee eligible for bonus and also enhanced the ceiling limits for computation of bonus Howevetr, tking
cogmzance of the stay granted by various High Courts, the Company has not recognised any differential amount of bonus for the penod 01 Apnil
2014 to 31 March 2015 and accordingly has recognised the expense as per the amended provisions w.e.f 01 Apnl 2015 and onwards.

{b) Contingent ligbility relatmg to determination of provident fund liability, based on judgement from Hom'ble Supreme Court, 15 not
determinable at present for the period prior to March 2019, due 10 uncertninty of the impact of the judgement in the absence of further
clanfication ralating {0 applicabilify. The company has staried complying with this prospectively from the raonth of March 2019 The Company

will continue to assess anv further developments in this matier for its implication on the financial statements, ifany.

Capital commitments

The Company 1& committed to incurring capital expenditure of INR. 7749 million as on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 | INR 4% 39 million).

Employee Benefits Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A, Gratuity (unfunded)
Amount recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cosl 118 045
Interest cost 0.31 (.28
Actuanial (gain) / loss recognized during the year 2.16 (0.01)
Tuotnl 365 0,72
As al As al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Movement in the defined benelit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of the year 4.26 3.85
Intzrest cost 03l 0.28
Currenl service cost 118 045
Acquisition/vestiture - 048
Benefits paid . [0.79)
Actuarial (gain)/ logs on plan habilities 216 (001)
Present value of defined bencfit obligation as at the end of the year 7.91 4.26
Asal As al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amonnt recognized in Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 791 4.26
Net Liubility recogmzed in Balance Sheet 7.91 4.26
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Break-up of present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year
Noo-current 693 3.46
Current 9% 0.80
791 4.26

For determination of the gratuity lability of the Company, the following actuarial sssumptions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

were nsed

Discount Kate 7.15% 7.35%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 13.00% 10.00%
Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 | 3] March 2022 | 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Present value of obligation 7.91 426 3,85 1.50 451
;“E;::ﬁ;f“ el the statement of 3.65 072 115 (0.58) 112
Actuarial guin / (loss) on plan habilities (2.16) 0.01 (0.14) 1.54 0.29

B. Provident Mind

Caontribution made 10 provident and other funds during the vesr INR | 00 million {31 March 2023 ; INR 1 06 million)
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Reach Promoters Private Limited

Summoary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amovris in INR Millions, wnless otherwise stared)

Segment Reporting

The Compeary is primarily engaged in the business of construction, development, leasing and operations of commercial space, which as per
Accouniing Standard — 17 on “Segment Reporting” as specified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounting
Stmdard) Rules, 2021 (as amended} 1= considered to be the only reportable busmess segment The Company 15 primanly operating in India
which 15 considerad as a single geographical segmem

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expenditure in loreign currency (on accrual basis)
Consultancy charges 3.39 189

539 2.89

Information required te be disclosed under Accounting Standard 19 on “Leases™

Ad lessor -
The Company has leased out various premises i its retail project “Airia” on operating lesses during the current period.
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Minimum lease rent receivable in respect of such operating leases ®

Naot later than one year 161 52 194 93
Later than one year but not later than five vears 68 09 218 66
Later than five years . a

Lease mcome for the year recognized in the statement of profit and loss 37825 302,40

* The above disclogure ix limited to only fixed lease payments for the non-cancellable lease term with the lessees ad does not molude rental
revenue based on revenwe share ax the same cannor be determined

Related party disclosures
Disclosures in respect of Accountmg Standard (AS) - 18 *Related Party Disclosures’, as specafied under Section 133 of the Compantes Aci, 2013,
resd with Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2021 (ss amended):

A) Related party relationships
U Enutes under commien sonteol of key menagemenl personngl CRME') (with whom there were (ranssctions during the current and/or previous
year),

Uselech Buildwell Private Lomited

Lake Shore India Managemeni Private Limited

Realbiz Realty LLP

Devinde Buldcon Private Limited

Red Infracon Private Limited

Toma Developers Private Limited

iR 2 itk d | L
Lake Shore Indm Retall Venture Fund

m} Key munagement personnel (KMP):
Mr Herinder Singh Hors, Director
Mr. Paramjit Singh, Dircclor
Mr. Scort Scher Eisenberg, Director
Mr. Kanim Merchant, Director

Mr. Barmandeep Singh Mokha (Son of Paramjit Singh. Director)



Reach Promoters Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in INR. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B) Transactions with /outstanding balance of enterprises over which KMP have significant influence:

Enterprises over which KNP have significant
Particulars influence

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Transactions during the year

Professional fees:

Lake Shore India Management Private Limited 18.00 18.00

Reimbursement of expenses:

Lake Shore India Management Private Limited 3.17 1.54

Sale/Transfer of Property, Plant and Equipmeni:

Lake Shore India Management Private Limited 0.06 0.01

Gratuity Transfer:

Lake Shore India Management Private Limited r 0.49

Support Services:

Torna Developers Private Limited - 0.38

Trade Receivable:

Realbiz Realty LLP 0.25 -

Deposit Receipt:

Usetech Buildwell Private Limited 0.52 -

Balances outstanding at the vear end:

Optionally convertible debentures “Series A™:

Red Infracon Private Limited - 131.75
Devindu Buildcon Private Limited - 119.47
Optionally convertible debentures “Series B™:

Red Infracon Private Limited - 110.00
Devindu Buildcon Private Limited - 18.02
Trade receivables:

Usetech Buildwell Private Limited 0.20 0.60
Tormna Developer Private Limited - 0,38
Realbiz Realty LLP 0.11 -

C) Transactions with /outstanding balance of enterprises which directly control the reporting

enterprise:
Particulars Enterprises that directly control the reporting
enterprise
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances payable at the year end
Optienally convertible debentures “Series A™;
Lake Shore India Betail Venture Fund 640.00 640.00
Optionally convertible debentures “Series B™:
Lake Shore India Retail Venture Fund 5.40 5.40
Compulsorily convertible debentures “Series B™:
Lake Shore India Retail Venture Fund 154.65 154.65




Reach Promoiers Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year

ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

D) Transactions with /‘ontstanding balance of Key management personnel and their relatives:

Particulars Key management personnel and their relatives
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balances outstanding at the year end

Compulsorily convertible debentures “Series A™:

Harinder Singh Hora 91.25 91.25

Optionally convertible debentures “Series A™:

Harninder Singh Hora 30522 54.00

Paramjit Singh 19.85 19.85

Optionally convertible debentures “Series B™:

Harinder Singh Hora 128.02 -

Trade receivables:

Paramjit Singh - 0.05

Harpreet Singh Hora - 0.11

Ramandeep Singh Mokha - 0.05

Short term borrowing:

Harinder Singh Hora 14.00 14.00




Resch Promotors Private Limited
Sammary of signilicant accouniing policies and other cxplonatary information for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounis i INR Millions, unless otheratse sioned)

3. hming the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had recetved Occopancy Certificats (70C) for its commiercial medl “Aine®. Subsequanthy vpon recespt of OC and
comrpletion of vommercial mall, the Company had carned out coptalization of its capital work-in progress to properly, plant md equipment. Dining caprtalization, the
Company had reclassified Goods and Service Tax ("GST ) input credit incurred on construction of mall from capital worke-progeess w long torm loans and advances as
input recejviablen, bagie (he judgment rendered by the Ionble High Coart, Ossa in the case of M/ Safnri Reqreaty Private Limpled, cited as 2019 153 TM1 1278,
against which the deparmment has fled an appeal befors the Hon'ble Sapreme Court of India, which is presemtly pending. Accordingly, the Campany has availed GST
mput credit compaises of [GST, CGST aad SGST. peraming to construchion of Company's mall - Alda” for the purpose of leming our of the same o pumerous rensnis
andd legsees, smounting to INR 11075 mifboa (31 March 2023 - INR 95 .43 nuilhon) Basis the legel advise recerved by the management of the Company, they are of
the view thot such 05T wpid coadet will be ivatlable (o tbe Company, However, the Company will nof utihze soch GET mpul credit bl the fme the judgement of
Hon'ble Supreme Court of Indio o mode in reapect of thin matter Ag an abundant coutieus, the Companry hag made 3 provinion for the yeor of TNR 3.95 mllion (31
March 2023 | TNR 2.02 million) which oflwerwise the Company would have to meur as expense, had such G5T inguet coadi not shown as advasce. Further, based on the
internal nssessment, the management of the Compamy has capitalisad the fuput ceedit relating to 1GST amounting 1o TNEL 3 48 mn (31 March 2023 TNE_ 21,53 million)

1o the property, plant msd equipment

35, Financial Katios

AR uE A )
EAESc; Numeraior | Tensmisnor | vk 31,5004 | Mareh 33, 2azs | YAvietio Kb
i@k Carrenl K, Currenl Assels Cumrent Lghilines 092 154 =2 7% | Current Labilities increased
Represents the current =zzets of the significantly doe 1o merease
COTRpANY &8 seningt the currem m amount of cumment maturty
linkahitics. of Long term bomowings.
() Debit-Ecpoity Ratio, Total Debit Shareholders 202 2.03 =1%| Ihae 1o decrsase m debi
Represants relationship between Suiny Linbility and decremss mn losses

extzmal Bobility and miemal cguity,

() Debt Service Coverage Ratio,  |[Eamnings availsble [Debt Service 0.10 0.06 62% | Impact of increass in lotal
Indicates that the busmess has for debi service Tevenue;
endugh meome (o comforiably
coves loan principal end tnjeres
payIRemis
id} Retem on Equiry Ratio, et Incame Shareholdess {0.02) 10,07 T6% | Impact of mcreass w total
Represents the fotal ream on equity exuity TEVERUE,
chpital,
(e} Trade recervables tumover ratio, (Met Credit Sales | Avernge [(.54 .11 47% | impect of morease m tofal
Represents ligoidsy of recetvabled Accounts TEVERNE If SOomgansan io
Recolvibleg previous year.
if} Trade Payables tuimover atio, | Wet Credit Aveiage Tiade 1410 10.00 4 1% | tmipact of incresse m lotal
Repretents Number of ims Purchases Payables plarchases in comparison 1o
credirorg are paid PrEvIDUS Yeor,
() Net caplisl nunover rafio, Net Sales Working Capatal 14.74 273 £40%, [ Bmpect of intrass in revenue
Mensures he efficiently by which i COMpaTison 1o previous
the company 18 using (18 working waar and mCreass in ciaTsnT
capitul i the business matarity of Long team
borowmgs
(h) Net profit oto, Met Profit after - [MNet Sales (0043 (0.20) E3% | bmipact of tncreases m lotal
felanonship between net profic offer | Tax TEVERDE,
tax and net saleg
{1} Return cn Capital employed, Earmmg before | Temgible nel 002 (000 2374% | bmxpact of mcrsase m total
Represosts compeny's profitnbhality  [intorest and tax |worth* totad debst revenne.
and capiral efficieacy. + deferred tix
liabril ify

¥, In the opinon of (e Board of Doectors, current nssels; loans and ndvances have a valee on realization in the ordinary course of business at lsast oqual 1o the muoom M
which they are stated in the balance sheet and provisions for all known { expecied lisbilities have been masde.

37. The Compary has not surpassed the criteria as specified onder sub-gsction (1) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Compames (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Fules, 2014, therefore the disclosare requiced under Corporsie Sogial Responsibility is not applicable on the Company
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Heach Promters Private Limited
Smmmary of significant accounting palicles and other explanatory informatdon for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(AN oty INK Aftilioms, unfess otherorne sioted)

Ohiher Digelosure a9 per Schedule 11

(o) Mo proceedings hove beon initioted on or are peading against the Compony for holdng bennmi property under the Beaonu Transactions (Prohibition) Ace, 1988

(b} The Company has working capital fiscilities from banks on the basis of secunity among other including rade receivable, Purtusmt 10 sanction letrer, company 15 o

required 1o sabnmil S@isment of carrent assels wilh the bk
The (7 * ot been declared wilful defaulier by amy bank or financml instimtion or government or any government suthority

id) The Compaay kas no wanssctions with the compamics struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1936

(e}

The Cosnpamy hna not eotered nite any scheme of ammgoment whitch hna an scoounting impact on curtont or previous financinl vear

(£} There 18 oo meome surrendarsd or disclosed woome duning the curment or previons vear 10 the mx asseszmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been

recorded,

fg] The Compamy hog not traded or invested in ciyplo ourency of virtusl currency ducing the gumrent or previous ye.

ihj

i

al

(k)

The Company hag sol revalued Ws progeny, plo and equipment or indangible aesag of both doring the currsil of prévibis year

The Company hag not advanced or Joaned or mvested funda 1o anv other permon(s) or enbityies), meluding forel g entries (mtermedraries) with the understanding that
the imermadiary shall:

ia) directly or indirectly kend or mvest in other persons or entines identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Company | Uliimate Beneficianes) or
ik} provids suy guamntee, secunty or the hke to or on behndf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company kes not recaived any fund from any personis) or entitylies), incloding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the undarstandingiwhether recorded in
wirting of otheraise) that the Company shall

(&} directly or indivectly Fad or vvest in odber persons of entities identifisd in ay manser whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimuate Bensficiaries) or

ib] provide any guaranice, sccurity of fhe like on behalf of e vltimaic benelcinnies
The Compamy does not bave any chacges or satisfaction yet 19 be registered with Regesirar of Compomes beyond the stanstory penod

The figures of the previous year have been re-grouped | re-clagsified to render them comparable with the figures of the surrent yeer. The umpact of the some 15 not
mpedenal to the user of the finencial statements

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLF For and o behilf of 1be Board of Phirectoms of

Chisrtered Accountants Risch Promioters Private Limbed

Firmn™s Regromution No.: 00107T6NNI00013 CIN: UT0100DL2006PTC 130938

e W Rl (St Paramjii s
KEUMAR ﬂ";:-mﬂ Kasimall weseen t Sinah E}HHMH
AGRAWAL roaens wasar Merchant mﬂfﬁ' ng I AL ]
Mondsh Agrowal harim Kagimall Merchant Paramjii Singh
Parmer [hrector Director
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Walker Chandiok & Co
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L 41, Connaught Circus,
Quter Circle,

New Delhi =110 001
India

T +81 11 45002219
F +81 11 42787071

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Reach Promoters Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Reach Promoters Private Limited (‘the
Company'}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2024, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAl") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiraments and the Code of Ethics, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors' Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Chartarsd Azceuntans ‘Walker Chandinh & Co LLP = reg ot ered wilth
_ liriieed linbibiny weth bdertifeatbon mimbed AAC
Ofices in Sesgalun, Chandgart, ©hannal, Gungram, Hyoerabad, £ ok, Kellkala, Mumba, few Oy, Noida and Pare I085 wnd rte registered office at |41 Connaught

Cicus Mew Dafhl, 110001, India



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Reach Promoters Private Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be maternially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

5. The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors.
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
intemal financial controls, that were cperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

7. Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements,

8. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Reach Promoters Private Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or canditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

8. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and except for the matters stated in paragraph
12(h){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended),

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021;

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fy The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under section 143 (3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended),

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Reach Promoters Private Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024;

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024,

.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

i,

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 38(i) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 38()) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropnate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024,
and

Vi Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned
below, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than consequential impact
of the exceptions given below:

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Reach Promoters Private Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

a. The audit trail feature was enabled at the database level, however, certain additional

configurations relating to generation of database logs were not carried out in accounting
software including definition of relevant policies. Accordingly, we are unable to comment
on the completeness of such database level audit logs.

The accounting software used for maintenance of purchase and sales records is
operated by a third-party service provider, In absence of any information on existence of
audit trail (edit logs) for any direct changes made at the database level in the
Independent Service Auditor's Report on the Description of the Service Organization's
System and the Suitability of the Design and Operating Effectiveness of Controls’ ("Type
2 report’ based on the criteria for a description of a service organization’s system as set
forth in DC Section 200, 2018 Description Criteria for a Description of a Service
Organization's System in a SOC Report, in AICPA Description criteria, we are unable to
comment on whether audit trail feature with respect to the database of the said software
was enabled and operated throughout the year.

The Company has used another accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that the audit trail
feature was not enabled for the period 01 April 2023 to 27 May 2023,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

MANISH

Diggatally signed by
MAMNISH HUMAR

KUMAR  acawal

Dote: 2024.08.25

AGRAWAL 1920:4 40530
Manish Agrawal

Partner

Membership No.: 507000
UDIN: 24507T000BKDHQG4023

Place: Darbhanga
Date: 23 August 2024

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Reach Promoters Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i} (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and eguipment and capital work in
progress.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

() The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company disclosed in note 11
and note 12 to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. However, for
litle deeds of immovable properties in the pature of land situated at Gurugram Haryana
with gross carrying values of Rs. 281.27 Million as at 31 March 2024, which have been
mortgaged as security for loans or borrowings taken by the Company, confirmations with
respect to title of the Company have been directly obtained by us from the lender.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder,

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) As disclosed in note 38(b) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a
working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crore, by bank on the basis of security of current assets.
Pursuant to the terms of the sanction letter, the Company is not required to file any quarterly
return or statement with such bank.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(V) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any depeosits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act only in respect of specified services of the Company. For such
services, we have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
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pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under the aforesaid section, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods
and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding
at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(vili) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 1o any lender.
Further, the Company has an interest free loan amounting to Rs.14.00 Million which is
repayable on demand. Such loans have not been demanded for repayment as on date,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
aliotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our audit,
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation

made to us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period
covered by our audit,

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation

(i)

(xiii)

made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act, The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures specified in
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (&) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

(xv)

(xvi)

has an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its
business as required under the provisions of gection 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the

period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of

the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting

(xix)

under clause 3(xvill) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilites, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any materal
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
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date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria
as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
MAN'SH Digetally signed by

MaNSH ELMAR

KUMAR  assawal
Elate: 1024.0d.23

AGRAWAL TH2EIT #0530

Manish Agrawal

Partner

Membership No.: 507000
UDIN: 24507000BKDHQG4023

Place: Darbhanga
Date: 23 August 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Reach
Promoters Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Reach Promoters Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note’) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. WWe conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial contreols with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed rigsk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the E:nrnpany's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
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provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intemmal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issue
by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

MANISH  Deassy signod by

A HISH HLEMAS

KUMAR  achawa

Dt 20040007

AGRAWAL w056 130

Manish Agrawal

Partner

Membership No.: $07000
UDIN: 24507000BKDHQG4023

Place: Darbhanga
Date: 23 August 2024
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REACH PROMOTERS FRIVATE LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 202324

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members,
Reach Promoters Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 18" Annual Report on the business and operations of Reach
Promoters Private Limited (“the Company™) together with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024,

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY: -
(Amount in INR Millions)

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
Revenue from operations 683.42 510.17
Other income 11.18 15.86
Total Revenue [A] 694.60 526.03
Employee benefits expense 58.37 45.14
Other expenses 347.14 296.47
Total expenses | B] 405.51 341.61
Profit / (Loss) before Tax, Interest & | [C]=|A]-[B] 289.09 184.42
Depreciation
Less: Interest & Depreciation [D] 313.38 288.77
Profit before tax [E] = [C]-[D] (24.29) (104.35)
Less: Current Tax [F] - -
Profit/(Loss) after Tax [G] = [E]-[F] (24.29) (104.35)
Add: Balance in Statement of Profit & Loss brought [H] (1029.53) (925.18)
forward
Balance in Statement of Profit & Loss carried | [I] = [G]+[H] (1053.82) (1029.53)
forward

2. DIVIDEND: -

In view of the loss during the year, your Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year
under review,

3. THE AMOUNTS, IF ANY, WHICH IT PROPOSES TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES: -

For the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Company incurred losses of Rs. 24.31 millions and it
is proposed to carry the loss to free reserves.

4. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS: -

Information and data considered pertinent and necessary for the purpose of a proper appreciation of the
state of affairs of a Company is explained as follows:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a standalong basis.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any securities.

The status of the Company has not changed.

There is no change in the accounting year of the Company.

The Company has incurred capital expenditure as per the objects of the Company in the ordinary
course of the business.

rARDDER
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No relevant changes have occurred, compared to the position as stated in the previous year’s Board’s
Report, which has a material bearing on the performance of the Company.

. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: -

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the financial year ended March
31, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL
YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND
THE DATE OF THIS REPORT: -

There is no material change and commitment affecting the financial position of the Company between
the end of the financial year and the date of this Report.

. ORDERS IMPACTING GOING CONCERN 5TATUS: -

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concem status and Company’s operations in future. Hence, disclosure pursuant to Rule 8§ (5) (vii)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required.

. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH

REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: -

The Board is of the opinion that the Company’s intemal control systems are adequate and
commensurate with the nature, size and operations of the Company.

. DEPOSITS: -

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review.

As per Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Amendment Rules 2019 read with Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Second Amendment Rules 2019, it is construed that a vearly return shall be filed in e-form

DPT 3 with the Registrar of Companies mentioning the outstanding receipt of money or loan by the
Company but not considered as deposits.

The yearly return for the financial year 2023-24 in the Form DPT-3 has been duly completed within the
statutory time limit,

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: -
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Company.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR: -

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there were no changes in the Board of Directors composition and
Key Managerial Personnel.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
During the year under review, four (4) Board Meetings were held on the below mentioned dates:

July 13, 2023
October 27, 2023
December 19, 2023
March 28, 2023

Proper notices were given, and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book
as required under the Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial Standards and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS: -

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants were reappointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 21st September 2020, for the second term of five
consecutive years to hold the office from the conclusion of the 14th Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Auditors have confirmed that
they are not disqualified from being re-appointed as Auditors of the Company and that they conduct the
Statutory Audit from Financial Year 2020-21 to Financial Year 2024-25.

AUDITORS® REPORT: -

There is no gualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the auditors in their
report for the financial year 2023-24.

The auditor in its audit report, has made a remark, relating the maintenance of the audit trail as required
by Section 128 of the Companies Act, 2013.

This observation arises from technical complexities related to audit logs within Database access in our
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system and non-maintenance of audit logs on certain tables and its
understanding. which will be appropnately addressed.

Auditors” Report is self- explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

Further, the Auditors™ Report for the financial vear ended March 31, 2024, is annexed with the Financial
Statements for your kind perusal and information.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: -

M/s Ashish Mishra & Associates, Company Secretaries were appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for conducting the secretarial audit on and from the Financial Year 2023-24.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’'S REPORT: -

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the auditors in their
report for the financial year 2023-24,
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES AND BUYBACK OF SHARES: -

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares by way of rights or
otherwise to existing shareholders The Company has neither bought back any of its securities, nor

issued any further shares by way of Sweat equity and bonus shares. The Company has not provided any
Stock Option Scheme to the employees.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: -

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the Financial Statements of
the Company for the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGMENTS MADE WITH THE RELATED
PARTIES: -

During the year under review, all the contracts or arrangements entered with the related parties were in
ordinary course of business, with necessary/ requisite approval(s). The formal disclosure of such related

party contracts or arrangements is furnished in Annexure I in form AOC- 2.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES: -

The Company is not required to constitute a Nomuination and Remuneration Commiltee as the
provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: -

(a) Conservation of energy:

Sr. No. Particulars Remarks
(i) the steps taken or impact on | Although the operations of the Company are not energy
conservation of energy intensive, however, every efforts are made to ensure

optimum use of energy in the operations of the
Company by using energy efficient LED lights,
computers and other equipment. Constant efforts are
made through regular/preventive maintenance and
upkeep of existing electrical equipment to minimize
breakdowns and loss of energy. During the previous
year the Company took the initiative to install motion
sensor lights in various parts of the *Airia Mall" to
enable optimized use of energy.

(i1) the steps taken by the Company | Use of Sclar PV based roofiop electrical systems of
for utilizing alternate sources of | capacity 224 kWp by the Company installed on the

energy building terrace/rooftops at the “Airia Mall® situated at
Badshahpur,Gurugram.
(i11) the capital investment on energy | The Investment in Solar PV based rooftop electrical
conservation equipment systems is not of Capital nature.
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(b) Technology Absorption:

The Company continues to use the latest technology to improve the productivity and quality of its
services and products.

(¢) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in INR Millions)

Earnings -

Outgo 5.39

STATEMENT SHOWING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY: -

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a Risk
Management Policy to identifv the elements of risk, if any which in the opinion of the Board may
threaten the existence of the Company.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors did not come across any potential risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company.

ANNUAL RETURN: -

The copy of the Annual Return shall be available on www.airiamall.com in annual return section of the
website.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: -

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby
confirmed:

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the loss of the company for the year
ended on March 31, 2024.

¢) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting frand and other irregularities.

d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) that the directors had devised proper sysitems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: -

The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2012 is required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and
records are being made and maintained for the Financial Year 2023-24.
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DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCTAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES.: -

The provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 related to Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the Company.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: -

The Company has in place a Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace in
line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, Internal Complaints Committes (ICC) has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The Company has not received any complaint on
sexual harassment during the Financial Year 2023-24,

APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: -

During the financial period under review, no application was made under the Insolvency and
Bankruptey Code, 2016 (“IBC 2016™) by your Company. No procesdings are pending under IBC 2016
against your Company.

PARTICULARS OF VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT

AND VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS: -

During the financial period under review, there were no instances of any one-time settlement against
loans taken from Banks or Financial Institutions.

DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM: -

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Section 177(9) & 177(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder with respect to vigil mechanism.

FRAUD REPORTING: -

During the year under review, no instances of fraud were reported by the statutory auditors of the
Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: -

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to the appointment of
Independent Directors does not apply to your Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARD: -

The Company has complied with all the applicable secretarial standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT

The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management
(Mode of Payment and Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 and rules made
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thereunder, as amended from time to time, including compliance with respect to the Indirect Foreign
Investment in form of the Downstream Investment.

35. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: -

The Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from our bankers, employees, auditors and consultants during the vear under review. The
Directors sincerely appreciate the high degree of professionalism, commitment and dedication displayed
by employees at all levels. The Directors also place on record their gratitude to the members for their
continuad support and confidence.

For Reach Promoters Private Limited
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Annexure 1
FORM NO. AOC -2

{(Pursuant to clanse (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions

under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: Nil

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if
any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangemenis or transactions

() Date of approval by the Board

(2) Amount paid as advances, if any

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required

under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and Lake Shore India Management Private Limited

nature of relationship (LSIM). Private Company in which Director of the
Company is a director. (Scott Scher Eisenberg and
Karim Kasimali Merchant- Nominee and Addition al
Directors of the Company respectively are Directors in

LSIM)
(b) Nature of Mall management services provided by LSIM to the
contracts/arrangements/transactions | Company.
(c) Duration of the On-going transaction — to be continued till March 2024
contracts/arrangements / transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or Noting and approval of continuation of the agreed mall
arrangements or transactions management fees of INR 15.00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen
including the value, if any Lakh only) per month plus applicable GST, for the mall
management services provided by LSIM, with respect to
the shopping mall at Sector 68, Gurugram, Haryana (the
“Airia") owned by the Company.
(e) Date of approval by the Board July 13, 2023

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any N. A

{a) Name(s) of the related party and Lake Shore India Management Private Limited
nature of relationship (“LSIM™)

(Private Companies in which Director of the Company
is a Director)

(b) Nature of Transfers' recoveries carried out/ to be carried-out at
contracts/arrangements/transactions | Written-Down Value (“WDV") of the asset or at

(c) Duration of the apportioned cost or any other price that is applied as if
contracts/arrangements/transactions | they were unrelated parties/ non-group entities.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or Existence of special relationship between contracting
arrangements or transactions parties will not affect the transaction and its critical
including the value, if any terms, including price, quantity, quality and other terms

and conditions governing the transaction, by following
industry benchmarks, past transactions entered by the
company, etc.




Limit:
Name of Related | Maximum amount per
Party financial vear (starting FY
2023-24) (Excluding GST)
(No minimum/ maximum limit
per transfer/ transaction.)
LSIM INR 20,00,000

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if | July 13, 2023
any:

() Amount paid as advances, ifany | -----

{a) Name(s) of the related party and Lake Shore India Management Private Limited
nature of relationship (“LSIM™)

(Private Companies in which Director of the Company
is a Director)

(b) Mature of Transfers/ recoveries carried out/ to be carried-out at
contracts/arrangements/transactions | Written-Down Value (*WDV") of the asset or at

(c) Duration of the apportioned cost or any other price that is applied as if
contracts/arrangements/transactions | they were unrelated parties/ non-group entities.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or Existence of special relationship between contracting
arrangements or transactions parties will not affect the transaction and its critical
including the value, if any terms, including price, quantity, quality and other terms

and conditions governing the transaction, by following
industry benchmarks, past transactions entered by the
company, etc.
Limit:
Name of Related | Maximum amount
Party per financial year
(starting FY 2023-
24) (Excluding
GST)
(No minimum,/
maximum limit per
transfer/
transaction.)
LSIM INR 35.00.000

{e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if | December 19, 2023
any:

() Amount paid as advances, if any -

For Reach Promoters Private Limited

: Diaitally signed by
Kar‘l_m i Earm Kasimali
Kasimali Eh-:ercham

ate: 2044.08.26
Merchant 133300 0530

Karim Kasimali Merchant
Director
DIN — 05269691

Address: 2B, 2nd Floor, Plot-29, Clover
Apartment, Panday Road. Colaba,
Mumbai 400005

Date: August 26, 2024
Place: Mumbai

- Digitally signed by
Paramjit ;.0 sinan
. Date: 2024.08.26
Singh 19:22:46 +05'30
Paramjit Singh
Director
DIN - 01831634

Address: D-82 Galaxy Apartments
Golf Course Road Sector-43 Galleria DLF-
IV, Gurgaon Haryana-122009

Date: August 26, 2024
Place: Gurugram



ASHISH MISHRA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

REACH PROMOTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd. Off: 410, 4t Floor, Ambadeep Building,
14, K.G. Marg, Connaught Place,

New Delhi-110001

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Reach Promoters Private Limited (hereinafter
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’'s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
NA

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; NA

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Bverseas—DPirectlInvestnentandExternal
Connnerend Borrowinas,

Office: A-1/2, First Floor, Shakti Nagar Extension, Ashok Vihar, New Delhi - 110052
Email: frsashishi@outlook.com , Contact: 9654626889



(v)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):- NA

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)
(i)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if
applicable; NA

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. to the extent applicable, as mentioned above.

On the basis of management representation, recording in the minutes of Board of Directors and our
check on test basis, we are on the view that the Company has ensured the compliance of laws
applicable on it.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper
balance of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act-NA.



Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

During the Audit Period all the Board decisions were carried out with unanimous consent and
therefore, no dissenting views were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,

rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: New Delhi For ASHISH MISHRA & ASSOCIATES
Date: 26/08/2024 Company Secretaries
FRN: S2019DE708800

PR No.3824/2023

Ash | Sh Digitally signed

by Ashish Mishra
. Date: 202408 26
Mishra 125754 40570
[ R i e aniaaed =)
ASHISH MISHRA
(Proprietor)
M. No.F11524
C.P.No. 16125
UDIN: F011524F001043577



To,

The Members,

REACH PROMOTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd. Off: 410, 4= Floor Ambadeep Building,
14, K.G. Marg, Connaught Place,

New Delhi-110001

Sir/Madam,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company, and relied on the report of the Statutory Auditor on the same.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place: New Delhi For ASHISH MISHRA & ASSOCIATES
Date: 26/08/2024 Company Secretaries

FRN: 52019DE708800
PR No. 3824/2023

As h i Sh Digitally signed

by Ashish Mishra
Mishra s o

A —— )

ASHISH MISHRA

(Proprietor)

M. No. F11524

C.P.No. 16125

UDIN: F011524F001043577



